ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR 

The Circuit Court wrongly interpreted - actually failed to interpret at all- a Federal 

Court order dismissing the plaintiff's claim when it had been pending there and used that 

as a basis for dismissing her claim in West Virginia State Court because of the statute of 

limitations. 

Nom - THERE W£RE. OTHER ISSUES BEFORE THE CIRCUIT COURT, 

SUCH AS MUNICIPAL IJABILIn'AND THE LOCAL POLleR DEPARTMENT"S 

CUSTOM OF KEEPIN6 A R06UE'S 6ALLEIl'i OF W'OMEN WHOM IT CON

SIDERS TO BE. KNOWN PROSTITUTE.S. THOSE. OTHER ISSUES ARE. NOT 

PART OF THIS APPE.AL. W'HILE. NOT A6RE.ElN6 W'rrH THE. LOWER 

COURT'S RULlN6S RE.6AlU)IN6 THEM, W'E. DO NOT APPEAL THOSE. 

RUlJN6S. 


STATEMENT OF CASE 

This is a police brutality tort action, which began with the plaintiff Michelle Evans 

representing herself pro se in Federal Court and then - when she became represented - her 

attorney attempting to transfer it to State Court. The Circuit Court of Berkeley County, in the 

ruling from which we appeal, dismissed it on statute of limitations grounds. 

Specifically. 

1. The plaintiff (petitioner) Michelle Evans woke up during the night of March 7, 2012, 

realizing that she needed a tampon but not having one. So she left the house where she was 

staying in Martinsburg, Berkeley County, West Virginia, and got in her car and started to drive 

to a nearby 24-hour convenience store. After a block or so, a vehicle of the Martinsburg City 

Police stopped her with its lights flashing. Details of the events that followed do not seem 

relevant to this appeal but, claiming that she had been stopped without justification and that 
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then three or four police officers had unjustifiably beaten her, kicked her, and tasered her, Ms, 

Evans subsequently filed a §1983 civil rights lawsuit in U.S. District Court for the Northern 

District of West Virginia against the City, the Police Department, and individual officers. When 

filing this case, Ms. Evans was pro se and unrepresented. 

2. Ms. Evans thereafter became represented by the attorney who is now representing her 

in this appeal. Litigation of the Federal lawsuit continued, but the tide seemed to be against Ms. 

Evans.1 She and her attorney thus decided, as a matter of legal tactics, to give up her Federal 

civil rights claim under 42 U.S.C. §1983 and, instead, to pursue a claim in State court. 

3. A motion for that purpose was accordingly filed in Federal Court: 


Motion for Remand and Amendment of Complaint 


...... the plaintiff asks that....... this matter be remanded to 

the Circuit Court of Berkeley County, West Virginia. 

Appendix at 51 

4. The Federal court responded to this motion by re-characterizing it rather than 

granting it or denying it. Saying that Ms. Evans was "essentially requesting" that her case be 

dismissed, even though she had not, the judge of the U.S. District Court thereupon issued an 

order2 that dismissed - not remanded - the Federal case. 

5. Ms. Evans thereafter filed this action in the Circuit Court of Berkeley County, alleging 

what she had said she'd allege - - that the police officers had committed assault and battery 

against her. Such acts, of course, are violations of clearly established law in West Virginia and

if proven - outside the scope of any immunity. 

I That was before this Court's laudable ruling in Maston v. Wagner, No. 14-1113 (2015), holding that "a circuit 
court may not summarily dispose of a claim on grounds of qualified or statutory immunity where there is a genuine 
issue of material fact underlying the immunity determination." 

2 Appendix at pg. 44. 
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6. More than two years had passed from the time of Ms. Evans' confrontation with the 

police to the time that she filed her assault and battery case in State court. In filing the State 

case, Ms. Evan relied on the savings provisions of West Virginia Code 55-2-18 and asserted that 

the statute of limitations had been tolled during the time that her case had been pending in 

Federal Court. 

7. The defendants nevertheless invoked the statute of limitations and moved3 to have the 

action dismissed, saying that the statute of limitation had not been tolled because Ms. Evans had 

voluntarily dismissed her Federal case. 

8. That dismissal motion was granted by an order of the Circuit Court of Berkeley 

County4, and it is from this ruling that we appeals. 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The Circuit Court wrongly accepted the facile argument of the defendants - that Michelle 

Evans had voluntarily dismissed her Federal lawsuit simply because that court decided to 

treat her motion for remand as a motion to dismiss. This led to the wrongful conclusion that 

there had been no tolling of the statute of limitation, and the wrongful dismissal of the plaintiff's 

case. 

ORAL ARGUMENT NOT NECESSARY 

The issue here does not seem amenable to oral argument and we do not ask for that. 

3 Appendix at pg. 6 et seq. 

4 Appendix at pg. 54 et seq. 

5 In preparing the Notice of Appeal, we indicated that no final decision on the merits had been reached. That was 

because the case had been dismissed on statute of limitations grounds with no decision as to the defendants' 

treatment/mistreatment of Ms. Evans. We apologize if that made it seem this is an interlocutory appeal. It isn't. 
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ARGUMENT 

The statute at the core of this case reads as follows: 

§55-2-18. Extension of period for new action after 
dismissal or reversal where the action is timely filed. 

For a period of one year from the date of an order dismissing an action or 
reversing a judgment, a party may refile the action if the initial pleading was 
timely filed and: (i) The action was involuntarily dismissed for any reason not 
based upon the merits of the action 

Michelle Evans filed the case in Berkeley County Circuit Court within one year of when 

her Federal case had been dismissed. The defendants, however, said that there had been no 

one year tolling of the statute of limitations because the Federal case had been dismissed 

voluntarily rather than involuntarily. 

That was wrong. The Circuit Court nevertheless agreed with the defendants and 

dismissed the case on statute of limitations grounds, in the ruling which we now appeal 

* 
Clearly stating her wish for the case to be heard in State Court rather than Federal 

Court, Ms. Evans asked that it be transferred. In doing so, she used the word "remand." The 

Federal Court responded by ruling that a remand wasn't possible because the case hadn't been 

filed there originally and, instead of remanding it, dismissed it without prejudice. 

Plaintiff is essentially requesting that she be permitted to 
dismiss her case so that she may attempt to file her claim 
in Berkeley County Circuit Court. Therefore, this Court 
construes Plaintiff's request as a motion to dismiss her 
complaint pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 41. 

In this case, Plaintiff has requested that this Court remand her case 
to Berkeley County Circuit Court. However this Court cannot remand 
the action to state court because this ,case was initially filed in federal 
district court. Plaintiff, though, is essentially requesting that her case 
be dismissed from federal court so that she may file her complaint in 
Berkeley County Circuit Court. 

September 16,2014 Order of U.S. District Judge Gina Groh 
Appendix at pg. 45 
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This dismissal was something Ms. Evans never asked for; never wanted. It was a 

sua sponte action by the Federal Court on its own volition, done by re-characterizing what 

the plaintiff had requested. 

It is fairly common for a court to re-Iabel, re-characterize, a party's pleading to be 

something that it didn't begin as. Indeed, Rule 12(b) (7) of our Rules of Civil Procedure 

provides: 

If, on a motion asserting the defense numbered (6) to dismiss 
for failure of the pleading to state a claim upon which relief 
can be granted, matters outside the pleading are presented to 
and not excluded by the court, the motion shall be treated as 
one for summary judgment and disposed of as provided in 
Rule 56 

A court's ability to re-characterize a pleading, however, should be limited to matters of 

procedure and not extended to matters of substance. If such a step begins as something 

procedural, it should not be interpreted or applied in a way that affects substance. 

Here, the Federal Court's re-classifying what Michelle Evans had requested 

and issuing an order doing something she had never asked for - dismissing her case rather than 

remanding it - has been applied in a way with the worst possible substantive result. The 

Circuit Court's mis-application of the Federal order has killed Michelle Evans' case. 

With the Federal Court having re-classified Ms. Evans' motion in the way that it did, a 

way she never requested, the defendants never even filed an answer to the brutality charges, the 

allegations of assault and battery, that Michelle Evans filed against them when the case was re

filed in State Circuit Court. Instead, they asked the Circuit Court to dismiss her case, saying the 

statute of limitations had not been tolled during the pendency of the Federal case because she 

had voluntarily dismissed that case. 

Opposing the defendants' motion to invoke the statute of limitations by convincing the 

Circuit Court to find that the dismissal of her Federal case had been voluntary, Ms. Evans 

submitted a five page memorandum. It is in the Appendix to this appeal at page 47 and we 

largely make the same points here as there. 
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One of those points is that the Federal judge clearly recognized Ms. Evan's intent to re

file her claim in State Court. She meant the Federal order to facilitate, not thwart, this. That is 

shown by the "essentially requesting" language quoted above from the Federal order. Yet the 

Circuit Court, somewhat disingenuously, stated that it had no power to "challenge" or "to 

vacate, modify, reverse, or otherwise tamper with" the Federal order. Evans wasn't asking it 

to do any of those things. Michelle Evans was asking the Circuit Court, as she now asks this 

Court, to merely implement the obvious intent of the Federal order and to let the litigation 

move from one court system to the other. 

Our statute prevents the limitation period from being tolled during the pendency of a suit 

that has been voluntarily dismissed, but the Federal Court order does not contain either the 

word "voluntary" or the word "involuntary." It is thus a matter of interpreting, not challenging 

or vacating or reversing, the Federal order. Yet the Circuit Court of Berkeley County failed to 

do that. It made no effort to perceive the intent of the Federal order. There was no attempt to 

analyze what Michelle Evans wanted to happen or what Judge Groh wanted to happen. The 

Circuit Court simply accepted the defendants' argument, which also contained no analysis, that 

the wording of the Federal order precluded tolling of the State statute of limitations. 

* * 
The Circuit Court ruling wrongly relied on what Judge Groh had said rather than what 

Michelle Evans had requested. 

Ordinarily, a court may not sustain a motion on 
grounds not urged. 

60 CJS Motions and Orders §40, pg. 48 

Judge Groh may have thought that Ms. Evans had been "essentially requesting" that her 

Federal case be dismissed, but Ms. Evans didn't think so and never intended to make any such 

request. The judge's re-characterization of her request, a mis-characterization actually, seemed 
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harmless at the time because all she had to do was type up a new complaint and file it a block or 

so away in Berkeley County Circuit Court. But there would be great harm if claim were to be 

lost because what she wanted to do was mis-labeled. 

The Circuit Court ruling was contrary to this principle of black letter law: 

§48 Construction of order 
......Courts must construe orders in a manner consistent 

with the best interests of justice and according to the substance and 
function rather than merely as to their titles ..... Generally an order 
will not be construed as going beyond the motion in pursuance of 
which the motion was made, for a court is presumed not to intend 
to grant relief which was not demanded. 

56 Am. Jur. 2d, Motions, Rules and Orders 
§48,pg.38 

An order must be given such a construction as will 
support it, compatible with the best interests of justice, 
with the order considered as a whole and with the meaning 
meaning of an ambiguous order determined from the 
intention of the court making it. 

60 CJS Motions and Orders §74, pg. 88 

We submit that any court order which sua sponte substitutes one thing for another, 

especially one that orders something which wasn't asked for, must be treated with severe 

scrutiny and, at the least, interpreted in a way that does no harm. 

CONCLUSION 

As we said in our Circuit Court response to the defendant's motion to dismiss, there is 

a good plausible reason for the statute prohibiting mUltiple voluntary dismissals of a case. It 

prevents a litigant from harassing someone by repeatedly filing, litigating for awhile, 

then dismissing and re-filing the same case. That would be an abuse of the judicial system and 

the rule prevents it. 

http:48,pg.38
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Michelle Evans did no such thing. She simply sought, announcing it to everyone, for her 

case to be heard in State Court rather than Federal Court. The presiding Federal judge did 

what seemed best to make that happen. The method chosen, dismissing the case so it could be re

filed, allowed the defendants to opportunistically allege something that had never existed - a 

desire by Ms. Evans to have her case dismissed. 

This Court should do what the lower court conspicuously failed to do. It should examine 

the clearly expressed intent of Ms. Evans, the clearly expressed intent of Judge Groh, and hold 

that the statute of limitations ~ tolled during the time that this case was pending in Federal 

Court.