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

IV. Summary of Argument 

The Berkeley County Circuit Court did not err in finding that Petitioner's claims were 

barred by the Statute of Limitations and not subject to the Savings Statute. The Statute of 

Limitations governing Petitioner's Assault and Battery claims provides that Petitioner's cause of 

action must be brought within two years. W. Va. Code § 55-2-12. Petitioner's claim arose on 

March 7th or March 17th of 2012. Appendix at p. 3. Petitioner brought her cause of action in 

State Court on September 15, 2015, more than two years after Petitioner's cause of action 

accrued. Id. at p. 5. Therefore, unless the Statute of Limitations was tolled, Petitioner's claims 

are barred. 

The Circuit Court correctly determined West Virginia Code § 55-2-18(a) ["Savings 

Statute"] does not apply to the circumstances of the present case. The relevant provisions of the 

Savings Statute relied upon by the Petitioner apply only to cases which have been involuntarily 

dismissed. Petitioner initially filed this matter in Federal Court within the two year Statute of 

Limitations. Appendix at pp. 23-24. Upon the Order of the Federal Court, the Court dismissed 

Petitioner's claims to permit Petitioner to file a claim in State Court. Id. at pp. 44--46. Although 

Petitioner's requested relief was an Order "remanding" the case to State Court, the Federal Court 
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correctly identified the action could not be remanded because it originated in Federal Court. ld. 

As such, the Federal Court interpreted Petitioner's Motion to Remand as a request for dismissal. 

ld The Court proceeded to analyze Petitioner's Motion as a voluntary dismissal, awarding the 

same. ld. Based upon the record before this Court and the Circuit Court, Petitioner has not 

challenged Judge Groh's characterization of her Motion to Remand as a voluntary dismissal. As 

such, Petitioner's dismissal from Federal Court was voluntary in nature, and not subject to the 

provisions of the Savings Statute. In conclusion, Petitioner's claims were asserted outside of the 

applicable two year Statute ofLimitations and not subject to the tolling provisions of the Savings 

Statute because Petitioner'S claim had been voluntarily dismissed from Federal Court. 

V. Statement Regarding Oral Argument and Decision 

The Respondents respectfully state that oral argument is unnecessary pursuant to Rule 18 

of the West Virginia Rules of Appellate Procedure regarding the specific assignments oferror. 

VI. Argument 

The issue before this Court is whether Petitioner's cause of action is subject to the 

provisions of the Saving Statute. Based upon a plain reading of the Federal Court Dismissal 

Order, Petitioner's Federal Court action was voluntarily dismissed, and therefore not subject to 

the Savings Statute. To the extent the Petitioner has appealed the Circuit Court's Order Granting 

Motion to Dismiss, Petitioner does not challenge the Circuit Court's ruling, but rather, challenges 

the underlying Federal Court's ruling which voluntarily dismissed her case. As such, this Court 

should affirm the Circuit Court's ruling because Petitioner's claims are not subject to the Savings 

Statute, clearly barred by the Statute of Limitations, and her challenge to the Federal Court 

Dismissal Order is not properly before this Court. 
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A. 	Standard of Review 

The appropriate standard of "[a]ppellate review of a circuit court's order granting a 

motion to dismiss a complaint is de novo." Syl. pt. 2, Hill v. Stowers, 224 W. Va. 51,600 S.E.2d 

66 (2009) (citing syl. pt. 2, State ex reI. McGraw v. Scott Runyan Pontiac-Buick, Inc., 194 W. 

Va. 770,461 S.E.2d 516 (1995». A Motion to Dismiss a Complaint for failure to state a claim 

upon which relief can be granted is governed by Rule 12(b)(6) of the West Virginia Rules of 

Civil Procedure. The purpose of a Rule 12(b)(6) motion is to test the formal sufficiency of a 

Complaint, John W. Lodge Distributing Company v. Texaco, 161 W. Va. 603,245 S.E.2d 157 

(1978), and to determine whether a Plaintiff is entitled to offer evidence to support the claims 

made in the Complaint. Dimon v. Mansy, 198 W. Va. 40, 479 S.E.2d 339 (1996). A Circuit 

Court, viewing all the facts in a light most favorable to the non-moving party, should grant a 

Motion to Dismiss where it appears beyond doubt that a Plaintiff can prove no set of facts in 

support of his or her claim which would entitle the Plaintiff to relief. Copley v. Mingo County 

Bd. ofEduc., 195 W. Va. 480,466 S.E.2d 139 (1995). 

B. 	 The Circuit Court did not err in determining Petitioner's claims were brought 
outside the Statute of Limitations and not subject to the Savings Statute. 

The Federal Court Dismissal Order unambiguously ordered a voluntary dismissal of 

Petitioner's claims from the Federal Court, conclusively removing Petitioner's claims from the 

purview of the Savings Statute. Consequently, Petitioner's Complaint filed on September 15, 

2015, was barred by the two year Statute of Limitations. To the extent Petitioner argues the 

Circuit Court misapplied the Federal Court Dismissal Order, Petitioner's claims are in direct 

contraction of Judge Groh's clear language and furthermore, are not properly before this Court. 
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1. 	 The Circuit Court did not err because Petitioner's claims were asserted outside 
the applicable two year Statute of Limitations and not subject to the Savings 
Statute. 

This Court has established a five part analysis to determine whether a claim is time 

barred: 

[a] five-step analysis should be applied to determine whether a 
cause of action is time-barred. First, the court should identify the 
applicable statute of limitation for each cause of action. Second, 
the court (or, if questions of material fact exist, the jury) should 
identify when the requisite elements of the cause of action 
occurred. Third, the discovery rule should be applied to determine 
when the statute of limitation began to run by determining when 
the plaintiff knew, or by the exercise of reasonable diligence 
should have known, of the elements of a possible cause of action .. 
. . Fourth, if the plaintiff is not entitled to the benefit of the 
discovery rule, then determine whether the defendant fraudulently 
concealed facts that prevented the plaintiff from discovering or 
pursuing the cause of action.... And fifth, the court or the jury 
should determine if the statute of limitation period was arrested by 
some other tolling doctrine. 

Syl. pt. 10, J.A. Street & Associates, Inc. v. Thundering Herd Development, LLC, 228 W. Va. 

695, 724 S.E.2d 299 (2011). 

In the case at hand, first, the West Virginia Statute of Limitations governing Petitioner's 

claims of Assault and Battery is two years. W. Va. Code § 55-2-12 ["Statute of Limitations"]' 

Second, the Petitioner's alleged injury occurred on March 7th or 17th, 2012. Appendix at p. 3. 

Third, West Virginia recognizes the time period for a tort cause of action begins when the injury 

occurs. Graham v. Beverage, 211 W. Va. 466,476, 566 S.E.2d 603, 613 (2002) (citing Cart v. 

Marcum, 188 W. Va. 241, 423 S.E.2d 644 (1992)). To this end, in conformity with West 

Virginia law, the Petitioner's Statute of Limitations began to run on one of these two dates. W. 
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Va. Code § 55-2-12. Fourth, there is no evidence or allegation that Respondents fraudulently 

concealed facts which prevented the Petitioner from discovering or pursuing her cause of action.4 

To this end, the applicable Statute of Limitations for Petitioner's Counts 1 and 2 would 

have expired on March 7'h or 17th of2014. Fifth and finally, the Statute of Limitations was not 

arrested by some other tolling doctrine. As such, the Court properly granted Respondents' 

Motion to Dismiss Petitioner's Complaint, filed more than two years after her cause of action 

accrued, under Statute of Limitations grounds. S 

Petitioner argues, pursuant to the fifth step of J. A. Street, her Statute of Limitations was 

tolled by the Savings Statute. West Virginia has adopted what has become known as the West 

Virginia Savings Statute. The Saving Statute provides as follows: 

[f]or a period of one year from the date of an order dismissing an 
action or reversing a judgment, a party may refile the action if the 
initial pleading was timely filed and: (i) the action was 
involuntarily dismissed for any reason not based upon the merits 
of the action; or (ii) the judgment was reversed on a ground which 
does not preclude a filing of new action for the same cause 

W Va. Code § 55-2-18(a} (emphasis added). Courts have repeatedly held, however, that cases 

voluntarily dismissed may not be refilled under the Savings Statute. See Henthorn v. Collins, 146 

W. Va. 108, 118 S.E.2d 358 (1961); Armor v. Michelin Tire Corp., 923 F. Supp. 103 (S. D. W. 

Va. 1996). 

4 Neither has Petitioner made a claim in the Circuit Court or before this Court that Respondents fraudulently 
concealed facts or prevented Petitioner from pursuing her cause of action. 
5 Although not specifically addressed by the Circuit Court in its Order Granting Motion to Dismiss in light of the 
Circuit Court's finding that the Savings Statute did not apply to any of Petitioner's claims, Respondent Martinsburg 
Police Department was not a party to the underlying Federal Court case that was dismissed. To the extent this Court 
may find in favor of Petitioner and remand the case to the Circuit Court for further proceedings, the Respondents 
would plead in the alternative that this Court must uphold the dismissal of the Martinsburg Police Department on 
Statute of Limitations grounds because the Statute of Limitations was not tolled against the Martinsburg Police 
Department by the September 16,2016, Federal Court Dismissal Order as said Respondent was not a party to that 
Federal action. 
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In considering whether a voluntarily dismissed action may utilize the Savings Statute, the 

Henthorn Court reasoned: 

[i]n several cases this Court has pointed out the breadth of the 
[Savings] statute and that, its purpose being remedial, it should be 
liberally construed .... But the breadth of a statute or the duty to 
construe a remedial statute liberally can not [sic] amount to 
authority to a court to extend a statute to a case wholly beyond its 
effects. 

Henthorn, 146 W. Va. at 111, 118 S.E.2d at 360. Petitioner alleges her Federal Court case, 

based on the same facts and against the same Defendants, was involuntarily dismissed by the 

Federal Court and the Statute of Limitations for her action was consequently tolled for one year 

after the entry of the order dismissing her case. 

Petitioner's argument must fail because it is a direct contradiction with the clear language 

of the Federal Court Dismissal Order which granted Petitioner's request for a voluntary 

dismissal. This Court has long recognized that Courts speak only through their orders. Legg v. 

Felinton, 219 W. Va. 418, 483, 631 S.E.2d 516, 581 (2006) ("[i]t is a paramount principle of 

jurisprudence that a court speaks only through its orders.") (internal citations omitted); see also 

Slale v. White, 188 W. Va. 534, 536 n.2, 425 S.E.2d 210, 212 n.2 (1992). 

The Federal Court's Order is clear: Judge Groh granted Petitioner'S request to voluntarily 

dismiss her case. Judge Groh dismissed Petitioner's case without prejudice. Appendix at p. 46. 

Judge Groh specifically analyzed Petitioner's Motion under Fed. R. Civ. Pro. 41(a), the Federal 

Civil Procedure's Rule regarding voluntary dismissals. Id at p. 45. Finally, Judge Groh 

specifically identified that Petitioner, through her "Motion to Remand," has "essentially 

request[ ed] that she be permitted to dismiss her case so that she may attempt to file her claim in 

Berkeley County Circuit Court." Id There can be no doubt that the Federal Court granted 
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voluntary dismissal of Petitioner's remaining claims under Fed. R. of Civ. Pro. 41(a).6 Pursuant 

to Legg and the paramount principle that a Court speaks only through its Orders, the Federal 

Court dismissal of Petitioner's Federal claim was pursuant to Petitioner's request for a voluntary 

dismissal. To the extent that Petitioner claims the Circuit Court misapplied the Federal Court 

Dismissal Order, Petitioner's claims are unfounded. 

As Petitioner's prior action in Federal Court was voluntarily dismissed, the West Virginia 

Savings Statute is unavailable to the Petitioner. Therefore, the Circuit Court appropriately 

analyzed the J. A. Street steps, and properly concluded the Petitioner's claims were not subject to 

the West Virginia Savings Statute when it granted Respondent's Motion to Dismiss. In 

conclusion, Petitioner's cause of action accrued on the 7th or 17th of March, 2012; Petitioner 

filed her State Court Complaint on September 15,2015; and Petitioner's claims are barred by the 

two year Statute of Limitations and not subject to the Savings Statute. Ultimately, there can be 

no doubt that Petitioner cannot prove any set of facts in support of her claim which would entitle 

her to relief because her claims are barred by the Statute of Limitations. 

2. 	 Petitioner's allegations that the Circuit Court misapplied the Federal Court 
Dismissal Order are unfounded and not properly before this Court. 

Specifically responding to her allegations in the Petitioner's Appeal Brief, Petitioner 

alleges the Federal Court Dismissal Order is not definitive on whether the dismissal was 

voluntary or involuntary, and therefore subject to interpretation. Petitioner further argues that the 

Federal Court's Order must be interpreted as an involuntary dismissal because Petitioner sought 

"remand" of her case rather than dismissal, and because interpreting the dismissal as involuntary 

6 SpeciticalJy, the Federal Court held that Rule 41 (a)(I) does not apply, and analyzed Rule 41(a)(2), providing for 
voluntary dismissal ofan action by Court Order. Appendix at p. 45. The Court does not analyze or reference Fed. R. 
Civ. Pro. 4 I (b), the Federal Rule governing involuntary dismissal. To the extent Rule 41(b) does however provide 
for involuntary dismissal ofplaintiffs' claims, Rule 41 (b) provides that defendants may move to dismiss an action or 
any claim for plaintiffs' failure to prosecute or adhere to court orders. Fed. R. Civ. Pro. 41(b). In the instant case, the 
Respondents did not make a Motion to Dismiss Involuntarily under 4 1 (b); to the contrary, Respondents opposed 
Petitioner's Motion to Remand and Amendment ofComplaint.ld at p. 44. 
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would result in great harm to Petitioner. Effectively, Petitioner is not challenging the Circuit 

Court's holding that her Federal Court action had been voluntarily dismissed, but rather, she is 

challenging the underlying Federal Court Dismissal Order which voluntarily dismissed her case. 

In support of Petitioner's argument, she cites various provisions of the Corpus Juris 

Secundum and American Jurisprudence legal encyclopedias. The Petitioner does not, however, 

cite to any West Virginia law. In particular, Petitioner relies on the Corpus Juris Secundum: 

"[a]n order must be given such a construction as will support it, compatible with the best 

interests of justice, with the order considered as a whole and with the meaning of an ambiguous 

order determined from the intention of the court making it." 60 C.J.S. Motions and Orders § 74. 

Petitioner's argument then is that the Federal Court Dismissal Order is ambiguous, and the 

Circuit Court misapplied the Federal Court Dismissal Order by failing to determine the Federal 

Court involuntarily dismissed her case. 

Respondents perceive essentially four components to Petitioner's argument. The 

foundation for Petitioner's argument is that she requested her case be remanded-not 

dismissed-and the Federal Court Dismissal Order mischaracterized her request. Petitioner 

proceeds to argue that the procedural consequences of interpreting the Federal Court Dismissal 

Order as voluntary would result in great harm. Petitioner argues, in light of the foregoing, the 

Federal Court Dismissal Order remains a matter of interpretation. Finally, Petitioner argues this 

Court should interpret lower court orders which re-characterize motions under an invented "in a 

way that does no harm" standard, loosely based on the Corpus Juris Secundum's 60 CJS Motions 

and Orders § 74. 

Respondents respectfully disagree. The foundation for Petitioner's argument presents, at 

best, an argument that the Federal Court mischaracterized her Motion to Remand. Based on a 
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plain reading of the Federal Court Dismissal Order, the State Court's only reasonable finding 

was that Petitioner's Federal Court action had been voluntarily dismissed. Notably, the Federal 

Court Dismissal Order operated consistent with Petitioner's request that she be permitted to 

pursue her claims in State Court, and Petitioner did not challenge the District Court's 

characterization of her Motion. Overall, while Respondents believe the Federal Court Dismissal 

Order unambiguously voluntarily dismissed Petitioner's claims, the Petitioner did not challenge 

the Federal Court's characterization and this Court is not in a position to vacate or modify the 

United States District Court Order Granting Plaintiffs Motion and Dismissing Complaint. 

Next, Petitioner's argument relating to the harm caused by the Federal Court Dismissal 

Order as voluntary should not persuade this Court to abandon the clear inapplicability of the 

Savings Statute to voluntarily dismissed cases. The Federal Court Dismissal Order did not in and 

of itself harm Petitioner's cause of action. As identified by the State Court, Petitioner's action, 

although voluntarily dismissed, was preserved for thirty (30) days under 28 U.S.C.A. § 1367(d).7 

As such, Petitioner was not without a remedy and was permitted to file her claim in State Court, 

consistent with her Motion to Remand. Although the Court has the power to liberally construe 

the Savings Statute, extension to the present case where the alleged harm to Petitioner results 

from her own failure to prosecute her claims or challenge the Federal Court's characterization of 

her Motion would be a clear violation of Henthorn. Consequently, the State Court's findings 

were not the product of opportunistic Respondents' arguments, but rather, the natural 

728 U.S.C.A. § I 367(d) provides: 
It)he period of limitations for any claim asserted under subsection (a), and for any 
other claim in the same action that is voluntarily dismissed at the same time as or after 
the dismissal of the claim under subsection (a), shall be tolled while the claim is 
pending and for a period of 30 days after it is dismissed unless State law provides for 
a longer tolling period. 

(emphasis added). 
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consequence of Petitioner's failure to diligently pursue her claims in the context of the Federal 

Court Dismissal Order and 28 U.S.c.A. § 1367(d). 

Contrary to Petitioner's assertions, the Federal Court Dismissal Order is unambiguous 

and not subject to interpretation.8 Although not subject to interpretation, the Respondents argue 

in the alternative that Petitioner mischaracterizes the standards for Order interpretation as 

presented by the Corpus Juris and American Jurisprudence. The proper standard enunciated by 

those sources being an Order must be considered as a whole and consistent with the best interests 

of justice. To the extent this Court may find the Federal District Court's Order to be subject to 

interpretation, the best interests of justice require that it be interpreted as an order granting a 

voluntary dismissal. Based on Judge Groh's evaluation of Petitioner's request, the Federal 

Court's reliance on Rule 41 (a) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Petitioner's failure to 

challenge the Federal Court's characterization, and as more fully explained above, the best 

interests of justice weigh in favor of this Court holding that Petitioner's claims in Federal Court 

were voluntarily dismissed. 

In conclusion, Petitioner's federal claim was voluntarily dismissed and therefore not 

subject to the Savings Statute. Whereas none of the other five J. A. Street steps are at issue, it is 

beyond a doubt that the Petitioner can prove no set of facts in support of her claims which would 

entitle her to relief, and this Court should affirm the Circuit Court's Order Granting Motion to 

Dismiss. 

8 To the extent Petitioner alleges the Federal Court's Order does not contain the word "voluntary," the Respondents 
would direct the Court's aUention to the Appendix at p. 45: 

Plaintiff is essentially requesting that she be permitted to dismiss her case 
so that she may attempt to file her claim in Berkeley County Circuit Court. 
Therefore, this Court construes Plaintifrs request as a motion to dismiss her 
complaint pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 41. Federal Rule of 
Civil Procedure 41(a) governs voluntary dismissals. 

(emphasis added). Additionally, U[i]n this case, Plaintiff has requested that this Court remand her case to Berkeley 
County Circuit Court .... Plaintiff, though, is essentially requesting that her civil action be dismissed from 
federal court so that she may file her complaint in Berkeley County Circuit Court." Id. at pp. 45-46. 
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VII. Conclusion 

Wherefore, the Respondents respectfully request this Honorable Court DENY the 

Petitioner's appeal and AFFIRM the Final Order from the Circuit Court of Berkeley County, 

West Virginia. The Circuit Court did not error in dismissing the Petitioner's Complaint as barred 

by the Statute of Limitations because Petitioner's claims were not subject to the Savings Statute. 

As such, the Petitioner's appeal must be denied and the same must be dismissed and 

stricken from the Court's active docket. In addition to this relief, the Respondents also request 

any further reliefthis Court deems just and appropriate.